

# Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc.

Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. 150 Broadway, Suite 301 Menands, NY 12204 Federal Employer I.D. Number: 05-4545450

Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. Transportation Benefit Plan

Plan Document

Amended and Restated January 01, 2024

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# I. ARTICLE - Definitions

# II. ARTICLE - Participation

- 01. ELIGIBILITY
- 02. REHIRE

# III. ARTICLE - Benefits and Election

- 01. ELECTION OF BENEFITS
- 02. TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT PLAN ACCOUNT
- 03. TIME PERIOD FOR MAKING, MODIFYING, OR REVOKING A SALARY REDUCTION AGREEMENT
- 04. FORFEITURES
- 05. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT
- DEBIT CARD
- 07. SUBSTANTIATION OF EXPENSES
- 08. REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES

# IV. ARTICLE - Administration

- 01. PLAN ADMINISTRATOR
- 02. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE PLAN ADMINISTRATOR

# V. ARTICLE - Amendment And Termination

# VI. ARTICLE - Miscellaneous

- 01. RIGHT TO ASSETS
- 02. NO INDUCEMENT, CONTRACT OR GUARANTEE OF EMPLOYMENT
- 03. GOVERNING LAW
- 04. CONSTRUCTION
- 05. TAXABILITY OF BENEFITS

VII. ARTICLE - APPENDIX A - Eligibility Rules for Participation by Employee Classification

### Introduction

The company amends and restates this Plan as of January 01, 2024 with an original effective date of January 01, 2012. Its purpose is to provide benefits for those Employees who shall qualify hereunder and their Dependents and beneficiaries. The concept of this Plan is to allow Employees to elect between cash compensation and certain nontaxable benefit options, as they desire. The Plan shall be known as the Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. Transportation Benefit Plan(the "Plan").

It is intended that this Plan comply with the requirements of Internal Revenue Code Section 132(f).

# I. ARTICLE - Definitions

- 01. "Administrator" means the Employer, unless another person or entity has been designated by the Employer, pursuant to the Article titled: "Administration", to administer the Plan on behalf of the Employer. If the Employer is the Administrator, the Employer may appoint any person(s), including but not limited to one or more Employees of the Employer, to perform the duties of the Administrator. Any person so appointed shall signify acceptance by filing written acceptance with the Employer. Upon the resignation or removal of any individual performing the duties of the Administrator, the Employer may designate a successor.
- 02. <u>"Benefit"</u> "Benefit" or "Benefit Options" means any of the optional benefit choices available to an Employee as outlined in the Article titled: "Benefits and Elections".
- 03. "Commuter Highway Vehicle" means any highway vehicle:
  - 1. that has a seating capacity of at least six adults (not including the driver), and
  - 2. where at least 80% of the mileage use thereof is reasonably expected to be:
    - 1. for purposes of transporting Employees in connection with travel between their residences and their places of Employment, and
    - for trips during which the number of Employees transported for such purposes is, on average, at least half of the adult seating capacity of such vehicle (not including the driver).
- 04. <u>"Commuter Highway Vehicle Expenses"</u> means expenses incurred for transportation in a "commuter highway vehicle" where such transportation is in connection with travel between the Employee's residence and place of Employment.
- 05. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
- 06. "Compensation" means the wages or salary paid to an Employee by the Employer.
- 07. <u>"Coverage Period"</u> means the monthly, quarterly, semi-annual, annual, or other period, designated on the Salary Reduction Agreement, during which a Salary Reduction Agreement is in effect.
- 08. "Effective Date" means the effective date of the plan which is January 01, 2012.
- 09. <u>"Eligible Employee"</u> means any Employee who meets the eligibility requirements set forth in the Article titled: "Participation". An individual shall not be an "Eligible Employee" if such individual is not reported on the payroll records of the Employer as a common law employee. In particular, it is expressly intended that individuals not treated as common law employees by the Employer on its payroll records are not "Eligible Employees" and are excluded from Plan participation even if a court or administrative agency determines that such individuals are common law employees and not independent contractors.
- 10. <u>"Eligible Transportation Expenses"</u> means those qualified expenses incurred by an Eligible Employee to purchase Transit Pass Expenses or Commuter Vehicle Expenses or Qualified Parking Expenses incurred for purposes of transportation between the Employee's residence and place of Employment.
- 11. <u>"Employee"</u> shall mean any individual who is employed by the Employer as a common-law employee as shown on applicable payroll records
- 12. <u>"Employer"</u> means Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. or any successor that shall maintain this Plan; and any predecessor that has maintained this Plan. In addition, where appropriate, the term Employer shall include any Participating or Adopting Employer.
- 13. <u>"Plan"</u> means the Employer's Tax-Free Transportation Plan as set forth in its entirety in this document and as may be amended from time to time.

14. "Plan Year" means the 12-month period beginning January 01 and ending December 31. The

Plan Year shall be the coverage period for the Benefits provided under this Plan. In the event an Employee commences participation after the first day of a Plan Year, then the initial coverage period shall be that portion of the Plan Year commencing on such Employee's date of participation and ending on the last day of such Plan Year.

- 15. "Qualified Parking Expenses" means the following parking expenses, unless such expenses are incurred for any parking on or near property used by the Employee for residential purposes:
  - 1. expenses incurred by an Employee to park his or her car on or near the business premises of the Employer; or
  - 2. expenses incurred by an Employee to park his or her car on or near a location from which the Employee commutes to work:
    - 1. By mass transit facilities, whether or not publicly owned;
    - By using the services of any person in the business of transporting persons for compensation or hire, if such transportation is provided in a Commuter Highway Vehicle;
    - 3. By Commuter Highway Vehicle; or
    - 4. By carpool (i.e., two or more individuals who commute together in a motor vehicle on a regular basis).
- 16. <u>"Regulations"</u> means either temporary, proposed or final regulations, as applicable, issued from the Department of Treasury, as well as any guidance or interpretations issued in connection therewith.
- 17. <u>"Run Out Period"</u> means the set number of days after the plan year ends that allows you to submit claims for eligible transportation or parking expenses incurred during the Coverage Period.
- 18. "Salary Reduction Agreement" means the contributions made by the Employer on behalf of Participants in accordance with the Section titled: "Election of Benefits". These contributions shall be allocated to the funds or accounts established for cost of applicable Benefits provided under the Plan pursuant to the Participants' elections made under the Article titled: "Benefits and Elections".
- 19. <u>"Transit Pass"</u> means any pass, token, fare- card, voucher, or similar item entitling a person to transportation (incl. transportation at a reduced price) where such transportation is:
  - 1. Provided by any mass transit facilities, whether or not publicly owned; or
  - 2. Provided by any person in the business of transporting persons for compensation or hire and such transportation is provided in a vehicle with a seating capacity of at least six adults (excluding the driver).

Transit Passes also include, but are not limited to, Smart Card(s), terminal-restricted debit cards and other debit cards where the use of the cards has been electronically restricted to the purchase of fare media for the appropriate transit system.

20. "Transit Pass Expense" means expenses incurred for any Transit Pass.

# **II. ARTICLE - Participation**

# 01. Eligibility

An Employee is eligible to participate in this Plan if the individual:

- 1. is an Eligible Employee as defined in the Article titled: "Definitions"
- 2. Meets the eligibility requirements determined by Employee Classification. Since these provisions differ based upon the requirements of your Employer, see Appendix A entitled "Eligibility Rules for Participation by Employee Classification" for complete eligibility information.

# 02. Rehire

If an Employee terminates his or her Employment for any reason, including (but not limited to) disability, retirement, layoff, discharge, or voluntary resignation, and then is rehired, the Employee must complete any applicable waiting period established by the Employer before again becoming eligible to participate in the Plan.

# **III. ARTICLE - BENEFITS AND ELECTIONS**

## 01. Election of Benefits

Eligible Employees may enter into a Salary Reduction Agreement with the Employer whereby the Employee agrees to reduce his or her future Compensation by the amount of his or her anticipated Eligible Transportation Expenses for the upcoming Coverage Period. The monthly pretax contribution amount will be divided into two equal amounts and will be deducted twice per month, as stated in the Salary Reduction Agreement. The resulting monthly reduction amounts will be deducted on a pre-tax basis from the Employee's Compensation twice per month until such time as the Employee changes his or her election.

### 02. Transportation Benefit Plan Account

This Transportation Benefit Plan is intended to qualify as a "qualified transportation fringe benefit" under Code Section 132(f) and shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with such Code section. Subject to the provisions of this subsection titled: "Special Rules for Transit Passes" hereunder. Participants who elect to participate in this program may submit claims for the reimbursement of qualified transportation expenses. All amounts reimbursed shall be paid from amounts allocated to the Participant's Transportation Benefit Plan account. The amount of any reimbursement shall not exceed the accumulated amount in said account at the time of the reimbursement, nor any of the following monthly limitations:

- 1. **Monthly Limitation for Qualified Parking Expenses:** Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Transportation Benefit Plan to the contrary, the maximum amount that may be allocated for Qualified Parking Expenses for any month within the Plan Year is \$315.00.
- 2. **Monthly Limitation for Transit Pass Expenses and Commuter Highway Vehicle Expenses:** Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Transportation Benefit Plan to the contrary, the maximum amount that may be allocated for Transit Pass Expenses and Commuter Highway Vehicle Expenses for any month within the Plan Year is \$315.00.
- 3. **Special Rules for Transit Passes:** A cash reimbursement may not be provided for an employee's mass transit expenses if Transit Passes, vouchers, debit cards or smart cards (or similar items that may be exchanged only for Transit Passes), are readily available to the Employer for direct distribution to Employees. A voucher (or similar item) is readily available if (1) the Employer can obtain the voucher on terms that are no less favorable than the terms available to an Employee directly, and (2) the Employer does not incur a significant administrative cost in obtaining the voucher. An administrative cost will be determined to be "significant" if the Plan Administrator (in its sole discretion) determines that the average administrative cost incurred by the Employer (excluding delivery charges of \$15 or less) is more than one percent (1.0%) of the average monthly value of the vouchers for a particular transit system (i.e., train, bus, subway, etc.).

# 03. Time Period for Making, Modifying, or Revoking a Salary Reduction Agreement.

A Salary Reduction Agreement must be made before the earlier of (1) the Coverage Period to which it relates; and (2) the receipt of Eligible Transportation Expense benefits to which it relates. Any change to a Salary Reduction Agreement shall be effective on the first day of month, as long as the enrollment and/or changes were submitted by the 25th of the prior month.

# 04. Forfeitures

Any amount in the Participant's account that has not been used for reimbursement of Eligible Transportation or Parking Expenses incurred prior to the end of the Coverage Period and 90 day Run-out Period, will be forfeited and credited to the benefit plan surplus.

### 05. Termination of Employment

The Employee's Salary Reduction Agreement shall terminate upon termination of Employment. All requests for expenses incurred prior to your termination date must be submitted within 90 days from the last day of employment. Any funds remaining in the Employee's account after a 90 day run-out period will be forfeited and credited to the benefit plan surplus.

### 06. **Debit Card**

Participants may, subject to a procedure established by the Administrator and applied in a uniform nondiscriminatory manner, use debit card and/or Smart Card(s) ("cards") provided by the Administrator and the Plan for payment of Eligible Transportation and/or Parking Expenses.

- 1. **Card only for Eligible Transportation Expenses.** Each Participant issued a card shall certify that such card shall only be used for Eligible Transportation Expenses.
- 2. **Card issuance.** Such card shall be issued upon the Participant's Effective Date of Participation and reissued at times provided by the administrator, as long as the Participant remains a Participant in the Transportation Benefit Plan.
- 3. **Maximum dollar amount available.** The dollar amount of coverage available on the card shall be the balance in the Participant's account at the time of any transaction.

### 07. Substantiation of Expenses

Subject to the subsection titled: "Special Rules for Transit Passes" above, the Employee may request reimbursement for Eligible Transportation Expenses by submitting in the manner and form approved by the Employer a record of the expenses incurred. The Employee generally must certify in writing the amount and the date of the expenses, and must submit evidence of payment (parking receipt, etc.). The evidence to be submitted by the Employee may vary depending on the facts and circumstances surrounding the expenses, such as the method of payment and the particular transportation method used by the Employee.

# 08. Reimbursement of Expenses

The Employer will provide reimbursement of substantiated Eligible Transportation Expenses on an administratively convenient periodic basis and will debit the Employee's account accordingly.

### IV. ARTICLE - ADMINISTRATION

#### 01. Plan Administrator

The Plan Administrator of the Plan shall be the individual(s) or corporation appointed by the Employer to carry out the administration of the Plan. In the event the Plan Administrator has not been appointed, or resigns from an appointment, the Employer shall be deemed to be the Plan Administrator until some other Plan Administrator is appointed.

# 02. Powers and Duties of the Plan Administrator

The Plan Administrator shall have exclusive responsibility for, and all powers necessary or desirable to carry out, the administration of the Plan, and without limitation on the foregoing, shall have complete discretionary power and authority to:

- 1. adopt any rules and regulations it deems desirable for the conduct of its affairs and the administration of the Plan:
- 2. take any action it deems necessary or appropriate to comply with any requirements of applicable law with respect to notice and disclosure and the preparation and filing of reports and forms, if necessary:
- 3. construe and interpret the Plan and make determinations (including factual determinations) under the provisions of the Plan with respect to all rights, benefits, duties and entitlements, including, but not limited to, eligibility for benefits, amounts of benefits payable, and all other matters pertaining to the operation and administration of the Plan, all of which determinations are to be made in the Plan Administrator's sole discretion;
- 4. appoint or employ persons to assist in the administration of the Plan; and
- 5. make any equitable adjustments to correct any error or omission discovered in the administration of the Plan.

# **V. ARTICLE - AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION**

01. The Employer may at any time (1) amend the Plan in any manner it deems advisable, (2) terminate or limit the Plan, or (3) terminate or limit the participation in the Plan by any Employer, effective as of the date specified in the instrument of amendment or termination, without the consent of any other Employer, Eligible Employee or participating Employee. Such amendment, termination or limitation may be retroactive to the extent deemed appropriate by the Employer and may be made in contemplation of, or with specific reference to, a particular transaction, job elimination, reduction in force, or similar event.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Employer (or his or her designee) shall be authorized to adopt on behalf of the Employer all amendments to the Plan. Amendments shall be adopted in writing and signed by the Employer's Chief Executive Officer and shall be effective without further action of the Employer or its Board of Directors.

### VI. ARTICLE - MISCELLANEOUS

### 01. Right to Assets

Neither the establishment of the Plan nor the payment of benefits under the Plan shall be construed as giving any legal or equitable right to any Eligible Employee, former Eligible Employee or participating Employee against the Employer, any Employer or their officers or employees except as expressly provided herein, and all rights under any Plan shall be satisfied, if at all, only out of the general assets of the Employer.

### 02. No Inducement, Contract or Guarantee of Employment

The Plan does not constitute inducement or consideration for the employment of any Eligible Employee, nor is it a contract between any Employer and Eligible Employee. Participation in the Plan shall not give any Eligible Employee any right to continued employment with his or her Employer, and the Employer retains the right to hire and discharge any Eligible Employee at any time, with or without cause, as if the Plan had never been adopted.

#### 03. Governing Law

The Plan shall be governed, construed, administered and regulated in all respects under the laws of New York (without regard to its choice of law provisions), except to the extent preempted by federal law.

### 04. Construction

The Plan's headings and subheadings have been inserted for convenience of reference only and must be ignored in any construction of the provisions. If a provision of this Plan is illegal or invalid, that illegality or invalidity does not affect other provisions. Any term with an initial capital not expected by capitalization rules is a defined term according to Article II.

### 05. Taxability of Benefits

The Employer makes no guarantee as to the excludability of benefits under this Plan for federal, state, or local income tax purposes, and it shall be the Employee's sole responsibility to determine and pay any taxes due as a result of the payment of benefits hereunder.

# **Execution Agreement**

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Research Foundati		Hygiene, Inc. has caused its authorized officer to execute this
amended and restated Plan document as of _	1/10/2025	, the same to be effective January 01, 2024, unless
otherwise indicated herein.		

Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc.

Ву:	Robert Burke		
Name:			
	Robert Burke		
Title:	Managing Director		

# CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION

The undersigned authorized representative of **Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc.** (the Employer) hereby certifies that the following resolutions were duly adopted by the governing body of the Employer on 1/10/2025, and that such resolutions have not been modified or rescinded as of the date hereof:

**RESOLVED**, that the form of amended and restated Welfare Benefit Plan, effective January 01, 2024, presented to this meeting (and a copy of which is attached hereto) is hereby approved and adopted, and that the proper agents of the Employer are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Administrator of said Plan one or more counterparts of the Plan.

**RESOLVED**, that the Administrator shall be instructed to take such actions that the Administrator deems necessary and proper in order to implement the Plan, and to set up adequate accounting and administrative procedures for the provision of benefits under the Plan.

**RESOLVED**, that the proper agents of the Employer shall act as soon as possible to notify the employees of the Employer of the adoption of the Plan and to deliver to each employee a copy of the Summary Plan Description of the Plan, which Summary Plan Description is attached hereto and is hereby approved.

The undersigned further certifies that attached hereto as Exhibits, are true copies of Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc.'s Benefit Plan Document and Summary Plan Description approved and adopted at this meeting.

Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc.

By:	Robert Burke		
Name:			
	Robert Burke		
Title:	Managing Director		



# Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc.

Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. 150 Broadway, Suite 301 Menands, NY 12204 Federal Employer I.D. Number: 05-4545450

Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. Transportation Benefit Plan

Summary Plan Description

Amended and Restated January 01, 2024

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# I. Eligibility

- 01. HOW CAN I PARTICIPATE IN THE PLAN?
- 02. WHEN CAN I ENTER THE PLAN?
- 03. WHAT MUST I DO TO ENROLL IN THE PLAN?

# II. Contributions

- 01. CAN I CHANGE MY ELECTION DURING A COVERAGE PERIOD?
- 02. WHAT IS MY "TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT ACCOUNT"?
- 03. HOW IS MY ACCOUNT FUNDED?

# III. Benefits

- 01. WHAT IS AN "ELIGIBLE TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE"?
- 02. WHAT IS THE MAXIMUM QUALIFIED TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE BENEFIT I MAY ELECT?

# IV. Benefit Payments

- 01. HOW DO I PAY FOR EXPENSES UNDER THE PLAN?
- 02. WHAT HAPPENS TO THE MONEY IN MY ACCOUNT WHEN THE PLAN YEAR ENDS?
- 03. WHAT HAPPENS IF MY EMPLOYMENT IS TERMINATED?
- 04. HOW LONG WILL THE PLAN REMAIN IN EFFECT?
- 05. WHAT HAPPENS IF A REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT IS DENIED?
- 06. WHAT EFFECT WILL PLAN PARTICIPATION HAVE ON SOCIAL SECURITY AND OTHER BENEFITS?

## V. General Information About the Plan

- 01. GENERAL PLAN INFORMATION
- 02. EMPLOYER INFORMATION
- 03. PLAN ADMINISTRATOR INFORMATION
- 04. TYPE OF ADMINISTRATION
- 05. CLAIMS QUESTIONS

### INTRODUCTION

The Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. Transportation Benefit Plan ("Plan") has been established by Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. (the "Company" or the "Employer") to allow Eligible Employees to pay for certain transportation and/or parking costs on a pre-tax basis. There are specific benefits that you may elect, and they are outlined in this Summary Plan Description.

The benefits provided under this Plan are intended to be excludible from gross income under Section 132(f) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Read this Summary Plan Description (this "SPD") carefully so that you understand the provisions of the Plan and the benefits you can receive.

This SPD was designed to provide you with information regarding the Company's Transportation Benefit Plan. If this SPD does not answer all of your questions, please contact the Plan Administrator (or other assigned person). The name and address of the Plan Administrator can be found in the Section of this SPD titled: "Plan Administrator Information".

# I. Eligibility

# 01. How can I participate in the Plan?

Before you can become a participant in the Plan, there are certain conditions that you must satisfy. First, you must be an active employee and second, you must meet the Eligibility Rules for Participation by Employee Classification determined by your Employer. **See Appendix A entitled "Eligibility Rules for Participation by Employee Classification" for complete eligibility information.** 

# 02. When can I enter the Plan?

You can enter the Plan on the first of the month following the date you met the eligibility requirements.

# 03. What must I do to enroll in the Plan?

Assuming you are eligible, you become a participant by signing an individual salary reduction agreement, thus electing to participate in the Plan.

# **II. Contributions**

# 01. Can I change my election during a coverage period?

No. Once a salary reduction agreement is entered into, it cannot be changed during the period to which it relates. However, changes may be made to your election for future periods and would become effective the first of the month, provided such change is submitted by the 25th of the prior month.

# 02. What is my "Transportation Expense Reimbursement Account"?

If you elect benefits under the Plan, your employer will establish and maintain a transportation expense reimbursement account ("Account") to keep a record of the reimbursements to which you are entitled.

### 03. How is my Account funded?

When you complete the salary reduction agreement, you specify the amount of Eligible Transportation Expense benefits you wish to pay for with your salary reductions. Thereafter, your Account will be credited with that portion of your salary that you have elected to pay through salary reduction.

### III. Benefits

# 01. What is an "Eligible Transportation Expense"?

Eligible Transportation Expenses include:

- 1. <u>"Parking Expenses"</u> that is, expenses incurred to park your car on or near the business premises of your employer, or expenses incurred to park your car at a location from which you commute to work by (a) mass transit facilities, (b) a Commuter Highway Vehicle, or (c) carpool.
- 2. "Transit Pass Expenses" that is, expenses incurred for a pass, token, fare card, voucher, or similar item (a "Pass") for transportation (a) on mass transit facilities, whether or not publicly owned, or (b) provided by any person in the business of transporting persons for compensation or hire if such transportation is provided in a vehicle with a seating capacity of at least six adults (excluding the driver). Transit Pass Expenses also include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred for any smartcard, terminal-restricted debit card or other debit card where the use of the card has been electronically restricted to the purchase of fare media for the appropriate transit system.

Any amount in the Participant's account that has not been used for reimbursement of Eligible Transportation or Parking Expenses incurred prior to the end of the Coverage Period and 90 day Run-out Period, will be forfeited and credited to the benefit plan surplus.

3. "Commuter Highway Vehicle Expenses" - that is expenses incurred for transportation in a "Commuter Highway Vehicle" if such transportation is in connection with travel between your residence and place of employment. A "Commuter Highway Vehicle" is any highway vehicle with a seating capacity of at least six adults (not including the driver), and for which at least 80% of the mileage (i) is for purposes of transporting employees in connection with travel between their residences and their places of employment, and (ii) is on trips during which the number of employees transported for such purposes is, on average, at least half of the adult seating capacity of the vehicle (not including the driver).

# 02. What is the Maximum Qualified Transportation Expense benefit I may elect?

The maximum amount you may contribute to the Account cannot exceed the maximum amount specified below:

For Parking Expenses: \$315.00/month

For Transit Passes and Commuter Highway Vehicle Expenses (combined total): \$315.00/month

These amounts are the maximum amounts that are excludible for federal income tax purposes. Some states may have lower amounts for state income tax purposes. Be sure to check with your employer or your state Department of Revenue to determine the excludible amount for state income tax purposes in your state.

# **IV. Benefit Payments**

# 01. How do I pay for expenses under the Plan?

When you incur an expense that is eligible for reimbursement, you must complete and submit a Request for Reimbursement (a "Request") to the Employer within 180 days after the date you incurred the expense; provided, all Requests must be submitted no later than 90 days after the end of the Plan Year in which the Eligible Transportation Expense is incurred. The Plan Administrator will provide you with acceptable forms for submitting these requests for reimbursement. As a general rule, you must submit a receipt (or other third party verification) along with your Request. You will be notified in writing if any request for reimbursement is denied.

Cash reimbursement for mass transit is allowed only if Transit Passes, vouchers, debit cards or smart cards, (or some similar item that may be exchanged only for Transit Passes), are not readily available for direct distribution through your Employer.

Your employer will provide you with a debit card or smartcard to use to pay for Eligible Transportation Expenses under the Plan. The Administrator will provide you with further details about the card.

### 02. What happens to the money in my account when the plan year ends?

Any amount in the Participant's account that has not been used for reimbursement of Eligible Transportation or Parking Expenses incurred prior to the end of the Coverage Period and 90 day Run-out Period, will be forfeited and credited to the benefit plan surplus.

# 03. What happens if my employment is terminated?

If your employment is terminated, all Requests must be submitted within 90 days after your termination date. Any funds in your Account for which a Request is not submitted within 90 days after your termination date will be forfeited.

# 04. How long will the Plan remain in effect?

Although the Employer expects to maintain the Plan indefinitely, it has the right to modify or terminate the Plan at any time. It is also possible that future changes in state or federal tax laws may require that the Plan be amended accordingly.

# 05. What happens if a request for reimbursement is denied?

If you are denied reimbursement under this Plan, the Employer or plan administrator will notify you in writing within 90 days of the date you submitted your Request. Such notification will set out the reasons your Request was denied.

# 06. What effect will Plan participation have on Social Security and other benefits?

Plan participation will reduce the amount of your taxable compensation. Accordingly, there could be a decrease in your Social Security benefits or other benefits (e.g., pension, disability and life insurance) that are based on taxable compensation.

If you have any further questions regarding the terms of this Plan, please contact the Plan Administrator listed under the Section titled: "Plan Administrator Information" of this SPD.

# V. General Information About The Plan

This Section contains certain general information which you may need to know about the Plan.

# 01. General Plan Information

Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. Transportation Benefit Plan is the name of the Plan.

Your Employer has assigned Plan Number 609 to the Plan.

The provisions of the Plan became effective January 01, 2012, which is called the Effective Date of the Plan.

The Plan's records are maintained on the basis of a twelve-month period. This is known as the Plan Year. The Plan Year begins on January 01 and ends December 31.

# 02. **Employer Information:**

The Employer's name, address are: Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. 150 Broadway, Suite 301 Menands, NY 12204

Federal Employer I.D. Number: 14-1410842

### 03. Plan Administrator Information:

The name, address are: Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc. 150 Broadway, Suite 301 Menands, NY 12204

## 04. Type of Administration:

The type of Administration is Employer Administration

# 05. Claims Questions:

Claims on expenses should be submitted to: Diversified Administration Corporation 369 North Main Street, PO Box 299 Marlborough, CT 06447

The Plan Administrator keeps the records for the Plan and is responsible for the administration of the Plan. The Plan Administrator will also answer any questions you may have about the Plan. You may contact the Plan Administrator for any further information about the Plan.

Company	Research Foundation For Mental Hygiene, Inc.	
Address	150 Broadway, Suite 301, Menands, NY 12204	
Tax ID	14-1410842	

<b>Employee Classification</b>	Full Time Hours Per Week	50% of full-time effort hours
Class 1	40	20
Class 2	37.5	18.75
Class 3	35	17.5